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HILLS ROAD SIXTH FORM COLLEGE GROUP ACCOUNTS
Strategic Report
Year ended 31 3uly 2022

Nature, Objectives and Strategies

The members present their report and the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 July 2022.

Legal status

The Corporation, which was incorporated as Hills Road Sixth Form College, was
established under the Further and Higher Education Act 1992, for the purpose of
governing Hills Road Sixth Form College. The College is an exempt charity for the
purposes of the Charities Act 2011.

Regulatory status

The College receives funding for its 16-18 vear old students, from the Education and
Skills Funding Agency (ESFA). The ESFA is an executive agency of the Department for
Education, and its responsibilities include audit assurance and the monitoring of
financial performance. The College was not in receipt of Adult Education funding during
this financial year.

College’s Mission

The College’s mission statement, as approved by its Members is:

To provide an education distinguished by opportunity, quality and
achievement for all our students within a caring college community.

Public Benefit

The College is an exempt charity under Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011, and following
the Machinery of Government changes in July 2016, is regulated by the Secretary of
State for Education. The members of the Corporation, who are trustees of the charity,
are disclosed above and on pages 14-15.

In setting and reviewing the College’s strategic objectives, the Corporation has had
due regard to the Charity Commission’s guidance on public benefit, and particularly
upon its supplementary guidance on the advancement of education. The guidance sets
out the requirement that all organisations wishing to be recognised as charities must
demaonstrate, explicitly, that their aims are for the public benefit.

In delivering its mission, the College provides the following identifiable public benefits
through the advancement of education:

= high guality teaching within a bread based curriculum;

¢ strong student support, guidance and enrichment activities;

« excellent examination outcomes;

= successful progression for students te their preferred destination; for the vast
majority, this is a higher education establishment;

= links with employers.
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Implementation of the strategic plan

The College’s current strategic plan for the period 2020-24 was approved by the
Corporation on 14 July 2020 and took effect from September 2020. Members of the
Corporation reviewed the Strategic Plan, Risk Register and Financial Forecasts o
ensure that resources exist to support the College’s strategic objectives and review
and update the plan each year to create a rolling plan. The new strategic aims are as
follows:

1. To enhance quality through delivery of the curriculum map to develop

a. Creative and confident learners

b. Resourceful and resilient individuals

¢. Responsible and active citizens
2. To improve the environment by creating a 21 Century working and fearning
environment
To adjust the College's mission approprietely to respond to the rising
demography

()

Financial Objectives

In order to maintain a sound financial base the College, including its subsidiary,
Cantabrigian Ltd, will aim to:

¢ maintain a two year cashflow forecast issued monthly to Corporation members
and College Strategy Team as part of the monthly management accounts
cycle;

¢ maintain & positive cashflow from operating activities each year {except where
significant construction costs are planned, and only with Corporation
approval);

« maintain a positive underlying operating position before FRS102 adjustiments
and exceptional items;

« achieve an adjusted current ratio of at least 2.0;

¢« maintain total borrowing as a percentage of income at no more than 15%:;

¢« maintain the ratio of borrowings to adjusted operating surplus for performance
ratio at no more than 5:1 (bank covenant);

« available cashflow to be no less than 100% of debt servicing costs (bank
covenant);

« maintain cash days of 25 or more;

« retain its financial health assessment at ‘good” or ‘outstanding: and

¢ ensure Lhe Chair of the Corporation and the College Strategy Team monitor
financial performance on a monthly basis and take any necessary corrective
action.

Performance Indicators

The College produces an annual Self-Assessment Report which is presented to the
Corporation at a meeting in the Autumn term. The report comprises a summary of
findings and self-assessment judgements together with findings from an evaluation
process, feedback from learners and a range of performance measures relating to key
areas of the College’s activity.

The Coliege has a national reputation for the quality of its provision; it was inspected
by Ofsted in February 2022 retaining it's ‘outstanding' status as a conseguence of
receiving grade 1 in all five inspection areas. As was evident to Ofsted in that
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inspection, and since, the College's success rates are amongst the strongest in the
country with most students progressing to university, including many to the most
competitive higher education providers.

FINANCIAL POSITION

Financial results

The “underlying” operating position (excluding exceptional items) for the College was
£510k in 2021-22 which was in line with the budget set for the year. Exceptional items
are not part of normal operations and they include pension adjustments for the Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). The summary outturn for the College (not
Group) is as follows:

2021-22 2020-21
' Statutory Accounts deficit (College) ) (649  1(172)
Impact of LGPS FRS 102 accounting 11,159 793
Underlying operating surplus after exceptional items 510 621

As a Group, after exceptional items, Hills Road Sixth Form College has recorded a
deficit on continuing operations after depreciation of assets at valuation, tax and
pension costs, of £498k in 2021-22 (2020-21: £118k deficit). Included is a profit of
F151k (2020-21: £54k) from the trading subsidiary, Cantabrigian Limited, which
operates as Hills Road Sports and Tennis Centre. The contribution from Cantabrigian
this vear is buoyed by a quick return from customers as coronavirus restrictions were
lifted, and a new contract arranged with the Lawn Tennis Association (LTA} providing
guaranteed use, in return for a fixed monthly fee.

The actuarial gain in relation to the College’s defined benefit pension plans, totals
£7,468k (2020-21: £21k loss) with the total comprehensive income in the year
recorded a2s a surplus of £6,970k in 2021-22 (2020-21: £139k deficit}.

The Group has met its financial objectives for the year with a tangible fixed asset base
of £21 million, accumulated general reserves of £13.7 million and cash balances of
£4.0 million,

The business activities of the College’s trading subsidiary, Cantabrigian Limited, are
confined to the UK. The Corporation of the College owns 100% of the issued Ordinary
Shares of Cantabrigian Limited at a cost of £2. The profit is gift-aided to the College.

Post-16 Capacity Funding

The College applied for and was awarded a total of £3.2m from the Post-16 Capacity
Fund to enable the College to progress with a number of construction projects on site
including a new gender neutral toilet block, a new and extended café, and a modular
building on & vacant area of the site. The funding covered ¢.80% of the application
with 20% covered by the College. The total claimed by 31 July 2022 was £1.4m, the
remainder will be claimed in 2022-23.
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Treasury Management

The College treasury management policy provides the framework within which the
College manages its investments and barrowings. This is reviewed annually and was
last updated in July 2022.

The Corporation approved a loan from Barclay's Bank to support Phase V of the
College’s Property Strategy of £1.62million in 2016, The total remaining loan balance
at 31 July 2022, is £0.86 million.

Liguidity

The size of the Group's tolal borrowing and its approach to interest rate management,
ensure a reasonable cushion between the total cost of servicing debt, and cperating
cashflow. Net funds at 31 July 2022, amounted to £4.0 million (2020-21 £3.4 million}.

Reserves Policy

The general reserves at 31 July 2022 totalled £13.7 million (2020-21 £6.6 million), in
addition to the revaluation reserve of £3.7 million and restricted reserve of £41k,
which comprises funds endowed for prizes for students. The figure for free reserves
at the year end was £3.3m (2020-21 £2.8m).

The College’s Reserves Policy has been drafted and is due to be approved by the
Corporation in December 2022, It explains a definition of reserves, the legal authority
to hold reserves, why the College holds free reserves, the financial risks mitigated by
the holding of reserves, and the policy’s impact on Going Concern considerations. The
target for Free Reserves is between £1.5m and £5m.

The level of reserves are monitored throughout the year, as part of the normal
monitoring and budgetary reporting processes. Management accounts, which include
& balance sheet and current and future year cashflow, are sent cut to Corporation
members monthly, and the most recent set of management accounts is received and
considered by the Corporation at least once a term.,

Any significant changes to the reserves will have been reported to the Corporation
well ahead of the change being implemented. Anticipated expenditure, which may
affect reserves, is generally as a result of Strategic or Property Plans, which would
have been discussed and approved at previous meetings, or through the Chair's
defegated action. Any significant unexpected changes to the reserves are brought to
the attention of the Corporation, as soon as is reascnably possible,

The College, in discussion with the Corporation, has considered the effect of strategic
and property plans on reserves, and having looked at budgets and forecasts over the
next few years, as well as the effect on 2021-22, particularly in relation to the ongoing
Estates improvement plans, is confident that the reserves will remain at a reasonable
level

Cash flows

Net cash inflow from operating activities was £2,003k (2020-21: £1,714k}. After
allowing for expenditure on capital, there was an increase in cash of £584k (2020-21
increase of £1,225k).
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Payment Performance

The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998 requires Colleges, in the
absence of agreement to the contrary, to make payments to suppliers within 30 days
of either the provision of goods or services, or the date on which the invoice was
received. The target set by the Treasury for payment to suppliers within 30 days is
95%. The Coliege incurred no interest charges in respect of late payment for this
period. The College’s creditor deferral interval at the year end, that is the time taken
to pay its creditors, is just under 9 days.

Financial Health

The College has continually met the financial criteria and its financial returns have
been consistently assessed as good or outstanding each year up to and including July
2022 and are self-assessed as outstanding for the year 2021-22.

CURRENT AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AND PERFORMANCE

Student Numbers

The College’s funding allocation is calculated on the number of students enrolled and
retained at the census date in the previous year i.e. 'lagged’ funding. In 2021-22, the
College was funded for 2,642 16-18 students, and had an out-turn of 2,662,
Examination Achievements

Public examinations returned for the first time since 2019 in summer 2022, following

the coronavirus pandemic. The College’s students, supported by our staff, produced
a stunning set of resulis.

2022 2022
HRSFC National

A 30.0% 14.6%
A - B 85.0% 62.8%
X 100.0% 98.4%,

iT

The continued IT security and threat environment has shaped a lot of activity during
the 2021-22 year. These have included:

« an external IT Health Check which resulted in an associated action plan;

e the final stages of implementing an ‘immutable data backup’ service to provide
enhanced resilience against potential ransomware attacks;

« ongoing introduction of a service to enable IT Services and Information Services
to run penetration and vuinerability testing in year, in addition to the annual
external J1SC service which is commissioned cach January;

» introduction of a full backup of all online 365 resources, including OneDrive,
SharePeint and email; and

= an external service to scan all emeail traffic for security threats, which
strengthens resilience against phishing attacks.
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Developments planned for 2022-23, focus on the introduction of the Bring Your Own
Device (BYOD) Implementation, security and IT associated with the new building. This
includes:

« year one of a student BYOD project to be launched in the Autumn term, which
aims to enhance teaching and learning through the effective use of student
devices, focusing on the 265 environment and Class Notebook:

« introduction of 18 interactive screens to replace aging projectors and AV
soiutions, during the Summer break;

¢ equipping the new Study Centre with suites of oan laptops for in year student
use and student support in the examination season;

« refreshment of the central storage for the virtualised network service: and

« enhancement and development of our Wi-Fi service to support the increased
demand from the student BYOD project.

Estates

The College continues to invest heavily in the Estate with ptanned works spanning a
number of vears.,

Projects completed in 2021-22 include:

e installation of & new suite of Gender-Neutral Washrooms (GNWC) for the
students, together with a new first aid room and staff shower:

¢ the third and final boiler replacement undertaken in the Greenhalgh Buiiding in
Summer 2021,

e the project to create the new, extended café beside the Quad, completed in
January 2022;

« refurbishment of the Hub to further enhance the College’s student social space;

¢« a new catering contract following a competitive tender in May, with a new
provider, Caterlink, appointed to commence on 1% August 2022: and

s obtaining planning permission for the new building, granted in April 2022.

Professional fees and initial offsite construction fees in relation to the new Study
Centre modular bullding (included in Work in Progress on the Asset register) were paid
during the year.

Over the Summer of 2022 the Estates Department, working closely with other
departments, undertook a significant programme of renovation and refurbishment
across the College Estate. This included:

e the refurbishment of the Porter's Lodge to become the new home for the

Marketing & Admissions Department;

redecoration of the Music Depariment;

the repair and re-stringing of some of our existing solar panel arrays;

replacement of failing wooden external doors with new aluminium doors:

the replacement of ceilings and lighting in the Music Department and the main

corridor running alongside the new café and GNWCs; and

¢« the groundworks and successful delivery and installation of the 21 modules that
make up the Study Centre prior to the start of the autumn term 2022, The
Study Centre is scheduled to be ready for occupation in earty 2023.

® & & &

&
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RESOURCES

The College is located on a six-acre site on a main arterial road into the City of
Cambridge, which is about 1.5 miles to the north, The Sports and Tennis Centre is
adjacent to the College on a three-acre site and in addition, ten acres of playing fields
are located approximately 0.5 miles away.

The Group has £17.4 million of net assets including a £429k pension liability {2020-
2021 £6.7 million), deferred capital grants treated as a Hability under FRS 102 of £5.8
million (2020-21: £5.2 million) and a loan relating to the construction of Phase V of
the College’s Property Strategy with an outstanding balance of £0.96 million (2020-
21: £1.06 miilion).

Net current assets stand at £3.1 million (2020-21: £2.5 million) including deferred
capital grants treated as a current liability under FRS 102 of £220k at the year end.
None of the Group’s assets are held with high credit risk banks.

During 2021-22, the College employed on average 350 staff, of which 213 are teaching
staff (including about 50 adult education tutors) and 137 are non-teaching staff. In
addition, there are about 30 staff who are employed casually mainly as invigilators in
the examination periods.

The College enjoys an excellent local, regional and national reputation as one of the
top sixth form colleges in the country. The College has high retention and achievement
rates for 16-19 students, and its examination results are acknowledged as being
among the best in the country. Each year around 70 students successfully apply to
Oxford and Cambridge universities, more than any other state school or college in the
country. The College also has the highest number of students achieving AAB in
‘facilitating subjects’ at A level of any institution, state or independent, in the country.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The risk management policy of the College is to adopt best practices in the
identification, evaluation and cost effective control of risks, to ensure thai they are
eliminated or reduced to an acceptable level,

The College’s risk management objectives are to:

= integrate risk management into the culture of the Coliege;

» manage risk in accordance with statutory and mandatory obligations and best
practice;

= minimise the costs associated with risk in order to continue to fuifil the
College’s mission;

» anticipate and respond to changing social, environmenta!l and legislative
requirements; and

= raise awareness of the need for risk management.

The College’s risk management procedures take cognisance of the UK Corporate
Governance Code. The College has systems to ensure that key risks are identified and
formailly reviewed on a termiy basis by the College's Strategy Team. The risk
management policy was updated and approved (July 2019) and the risk registers and
Board Assurance Framework (BAF) were redesigned at the same time. These have
been reviewed by the College Strategy Team, Audit Committee, Corporation and
Internal Auditors regularly.
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The main risk factors affecting the College are outlined below, not all factors are within
the College’s control. Other factors besides those listed below may also adversely
affect the College.

@

Failure to monitor financial viability and maintain Group solvency leads to poor
financial health, reduction in investment, breadth of curriculum and resources
and EFSA special measures imposed or insolvency

Failure to recruit and retain students leading to financial risk, reputational risk
and reduction of curriculum offer

Failure to maintain student outcomes either in a local context verses other post
16 provisicn or nationally given the College’s unrivalled reputation, could resuit
in reputational damage and future student enrolment could be negatively
affected

Failure to recruit and retain staff could affect quality if the College fail to recruit
high calibre stsff for example due to increased competition focally.

Failure to maintain the quality of Teaching, Learning and Assessment could lead
to reputational damage if student outcomes are affected. This could result in
poor student recruitment verses local post 16 providers leading to financial
difficulties.

Safeguarding (including radicalisation and inappropriate sexual conduct) issues
are not identified, actions taken are insufficient and ineffective, students at risk
of harm, do not achieve or the College could face OFSTED action or prosecution
leading to poor college reputation.

Being unable to meet the growing number of social, emotional and mental ill
heaith needs of our students, in particular during the pandemic where rises in
eating disorders and general anxiety have increased.

Poor Health and Safety practice leads to injury, death, prosecution.

Faiture to be ready to respond effectively and in a timely way to changes in the
structure of further education - including responses to the increasing numbers
of potential students and their location within Cambridgeshire.

Loss of data or systems access (from, for example, a cyber attack) could result
in reputational damage and financial loss.

The College mitigates these risks through:

&

a termly review by the Corporation of financial performance, including the effect
of the Estates plans on finances, including cashflow;

robust challenge of presented financial budgets and forecasts, undertaken by
Corporation;

in-year progress monitoring, including focus on Free Schoo! Meals (FSM), 16-
19 Bursary, Special Education Needs and Disabilities (SEND), and Looked After
Children (LAC), students:

g robust Departmental Seif-Assessment (DSA) process - departments with
weaker than expected results have clear improvement plans with support in
place {including budgetary);

political advocacy In conjunction with other SFCs;

staff retention targets set for teaching and support staff, monitored and
regularly repoited to the Corporation; and

self-assessment and improvement planning, with action plans in place for
departments requiring improvement.
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STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIPS

In line with other colleges and with universities, Hills Road Sixth Form College has
many stakeholders. These include:

Cambridge Area 14-19 Partnership (CAP);
Cambridge and Suffolk Schools Alliance (CASSA);
Cambridge City and Cambridgeshire County Councils;
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA);

Local community;

Local emplovyers;

Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP);

Maple Group of Colleges (tweive leading sixth form colleges);
Parents;

Sixth Form Colleges’ Association {(SFCAJ;

Sixth Form/FE Commissioner;

Regional Schools Commissioner;

Staff;

Students; and

Universities.

e & & & & v © & & e © H & 2 B

The College recognises the importance of these relationships and engages in regular
communication with its stakeholders through the Ccollege website, by meetings,
conferences and through its Enrolment and Induction days and Open Events.

Disability Statement

The College is committed to promoting equality for disabled staff and students,
seeking to create an environment that is open and accessible, where diversity and
individual choice are celebrated, thus enabling all of its members to participate fully
in College life. The College seeks to achieve the objectives set down by the Disability
Discrimination Act 1995 as amended by the Special Education Needs and Disability
Acts 2001 and 2005, the Special Educational Needs and Disability Act 0-25 years 2014
and the Eguality Act 2010,

Employment of Disabled Persons

The College is a 'Positive about Disabled’ employer and has committed to the principles
and objectives of the standard. The Coliege considers all applications for employment
from disabled persons bearing in mind the aptitudes of the individuals concerned.
Where an existing employee becomes disabied, every effort is made to ensure that
employment within the College continues. The College’s policy is to provide training,
professional career development and opportunities for promotion for disabled persons,
which are commensurate with those for non-disabled employees.

Health and Safety

The College is committed to safeguarding and promoting the welfare of its students
and staff and expects all members of the College community, volunteers and visitors,
to share this commitment. The College aims to ensure that relevant and effective
safeguarding practices exist which are actively promoted. The College encourages
students and staff to talk to the appropriate staff about concerns they may have
regarding health, safety and welfare.
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Health and safety at work is the responsibility of everyone at the College. All staff and
students, with the appropriate support, training and supervision, are required to
operate safe working practices and procedures and to work and study with due
consideration for the safety of others.

The College has a Health and Safety team which meets termly to discuss and review
health and safety issues and contributes to the development, implementation and
monitoring of health and safety policy. Any significant health and safety matters are
reported to the Corporation and an annual health and safety review is carried out by
the Assistant Principal (Finance and Operations) and presented to the Corporation.
During 2021-22 there were no accidents or incidents that resulted in insurance claims,

The College fulfils its statutory responsibilities in respect of Safeguarding and Prevent
and presents an annual report to the Corporation in the July meeting.

Equity, Diversity & Inclusion (EDI)

The College is committed to ensuring that all its members enjoy equal opportunity
within its community; the Coliege is aware of its statutory responsibilities in this
respect. The College’s commitment to equality, diversity and inclusion (EDI) is
embodied in a set of principles which underpins the College’s Single Equality Scheme.
Overall responsibility for all aspects of EDI for the year ending 2022, was with the
Deputy Principal who was supported in this work by the EDI Lead, and three EDI
Project Role Officers and one member of the support staff team.

The College publishes annually an EDI Report and a Single Equality Scheme {SES)
Action Plan, which incorporates equality objectives, to ensure compliance with the
Equality Act 2010 and the Public Sector Equality Duty. A review of the College’s SES
was undertaken and a revised plan created for 2021-2024. SES aims to promote
equality in relation to the nine protected characteristics and outlines our commitment
to address disadvantage in relation to socio-economic status.

An EDI briefing is included in the induction programme for new staff and ali existing
staff receive reqular updates including through the monthly electronic EDI newsletters
and through the diversity diaries/calendars located in all base reoms.

The College undertakes Equality Impact Assessments, analysing all new policies and
procedures and reviewing updated policies; equality analyses are also undertaken for
existing policies and procedures on a prioritised basis. Through EDI Forum discussions,
Eguality and Diversity was rebranded to Equity, Diversity and Inclusion (FDT) this yvear.

EDI developments in the yvear include;

e the Rainbow HFag Aweard, evidencing the paositive support for LGBTO+
community through inclusion, visibility and events;

« creation of a Young Carers Support group and 1-2-1s, providing appropriate
and proportionate support to ensure young carers have the same opportunities:

e the appointment of 58 Inclusivity Student Representatives to promote EDI
throughout the College community and ensure student voice;

¢ the appointment of & new EDI Lead and additional EDI Project Role staff within
pastoral and curricuium facing roles;

« regular EDI Forums (including students and staff) providing space for student’s
to voice opinions, ensuring they are heard and valued, promoting a culture in
which discrimination is challenged;

10
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e conducting faith and non-faith focus groups to evaluate areas that needed to
be addressed;

« work on ‘Close the Gap’ for ethnic minority students; and

e celebrating diversity and raised awareness through events including,
International Women's Day, Windrush Day, Pride Day and CultureFest,

Training and Development of Staff

The College is committed to recruiting staff with excellent qualifications and
appropriate experience. It recognises the importance of providing continuous
professional development as an entitlement to all staff in order to develop the ability
of each member of staff to contribute towards the achievement of the College’s
objectives and to sustain and enhance the high quality educational experience which
the College provides for students. In addition to off-site training, the Ccllege has a
staff development period in the Summer term each year, in which all staff participate
in elective and compulsory sessions. The College is committed to maintaining a healthy
budget for training and development sufficient to realise its strategic aims.

Trade Union Facility Time
The Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements} Requlations 2017, require

the College to publish information on facility time arrangements for trade union
officials at the College.

Number of employees who were relevant period | FTE employee number
3 2:2..

_'-'ﬁ-é}Eé"ﬁ{ééé of time ] Number of employees |
0% 0
1-50% 3 i
51-99% 0

100% 0

| Total cost of facility time o ) £2,099
Total pay bill {before pension adjustments) _ _£11,289,000
Percentage of total billi spent on facility time - 0.02%

’ Time spent of paid trade union activities as a percentage | [ 100.0%

| of total paid facility time | , o

Staff and Student Involvement and Consultation

The Members of the Corporation, the Principal and senior management fully accept
their responsibility for important matters of policy. However, the College encourages
employee involvement through the membership of a number of teams, the annual
staff forum, support staff and part-time teaching staff meetings, staff meetings and
oriefings and through consultation on matters affecting the College’s strategy and
operation. There are two staff members on the Corporation. The College encourages
participation from students, one of whom, normally the Chair of the Student Council,
is a student member of the Corporation. The Student Council is consulted on a range
of issues and encouraged to bring forward proposals. Students are also involved in the
appointment of new teaching staff with their feedback considered alongside that
arising from other elements of the appointment process. The College also consuits on

11
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particular issues by using focus groups of interested students and undertakes periodic
satisfaction surveys,

Geoing Concern

The College is financially robust with strong management supported by an
independent board of Corporation members who have a range of skills and experience
to bring to their oversight role. The Corporation receive monthly management
accounts and review these at termly meetings, and the financial forecast and budget
are reviewed and approved annually.

The College has presented to Corporation robust and prudent finances for 2022-23
and 2023-24, including mitigations to counter cost increases ahove current
expectations, to enable the College to respond appropriately over the next few years,
whilst growing the site accommodation through its Property Strategy. Cash balances
have and continue to be carefully managed whilst the College employs its Estates Plan,
as reported in the financial forecast (currently to 31 July 2023).

The College’s local and national reputation for academic excellence, demonstrated by
its June 2022 examination results, allows it to be confident in reaching its target
student numbers which are anticipated to grow over the next few years. In addition,
the College is confident in reaching its staffing targets,

With continued popularity of the College, an excellent Ofsted report, together with
strong, experienced leadership, strong financial health for the foreseeable future, and
effective oversight, the College believes it will be able to continue in operation, meet
its liabflities and is confident in meeting the challenges it faces over the coming vears.

FPost-Balance Sheet Events

There were no post-balance sheet events that require disclosure in the financial
statements

Disclosure of information to auditors

The members who held office at the date of this report confirm that, so far as they are
each aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the College's auditors are
unaware; and each member has taken alf the steps that he or she ought to have taken
to be aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the College's
auditors are aware of that information.

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation and signed on its behalf by:

-~ Ty

Kevirn Taylor
Acting Chair of the Corporation 6 December 2022
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Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control
Year ended 31 July 2022

The following statement is provided to enable readers of the annual report and
accounts of the College to obtain a better understanding of its governance and legal
structure. This statement covers the period from 1 August 2021 to 31 July 2022 and
up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

The College endeavours to conduct its business:

i in accordance with the seven principles identified by the Committee on
Standards in Public Life {selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability,
openness, honesty and leadership); and

ii having due regard to the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018 (‘the Code’)
insofar as it is applicable to the further education sector.

The College is committed to exhibiting best practice in all aspects of corporate
governance. We have not adopted and therefore do not apply the UK Corporate
Governance Code. However, we have reporied on our Corporate Governance
arrangements by drawing upon best practice available, including those aspects of the
UK Corporate Governance Code we consider to be relevant to the further education
sector and best practice.

The Corporation recognises that, as a body entrusted with both public and private
funds, it has a particular duty to observe the highest standards of corporate
governance at all times.

The College is an exempt charity within the meaning of Part 2 of the Charities Act
2011. The Members of the Corporation, who are also Trustees for the purposes of the
Charities Act 2011, confirm that they have paid due regard to the Charity
Commission's guidance on public benefit and that the required statements appear
elsewhere in these financial statements.
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The Corporation

Members who served the Corporation during the year and up to the date of signature
of this report were as follows:

Mr A Clark

3 Febr'uary 2021

4 years

‘Name | Date of Term of ' Date of ' Commitiee | Attendance
Appointment Office Resignation/ Memberships | including
Termination Comumnittees

#Mrs K Ashbhy 23 March 2022 4 years 1 67%

Staff Nominee

Miss M Cismas | 9 Jure 2021 to 7 7 June 2022 | 50%
Student June

Nominée 20272

I T i —

Miss R Coggins | 8 June 2022 To 6 50%
Student June
Nominee 2023
Mr 1 Cross 17 October 2018 4 years Audit (2021~ 93%
Reappointed 22 financial
19 Qctober 2022 year only)
Hominations
(financial vear
I 1o , |.only) : S
Mr A Day 27 March 2019 4 years Audit 83%
Mr 1 Evans 1 Javr'{ué'ry”ZOéO |4 y'é'a'ris' | Nominations | 91%
Ms F Fletcher 3 Februar\,f 2021 4 years Remuneration @ 80%
MrIHarvey R e - ,‘ i y"eé%s ew
Staff Nominée 1
Ms W Menon | 30 October 2019 4 vears N 509

Prof A Minson

1

10 February 2020

20 October 2021 |

4 years

4 years

Mise C Fhilbin

1 Augué-‘t- 2021

30 October 2019 |

4 years

4 years

FRemuneration,

Nominations

Remuneration

]f_}{)t‘{/r; e

Audit

Nominations
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Name Date of Term of | Date of . Committee Attendance
Appointment Office Resignation/ | Memberships | including
termination Commitiees
Mr R Tahir 8 December 2020 | 4 years | 19 March 80%
Staff Nominee 2022
Ms J Taylor 19 December to 31 31 July 2022 75%
2020 July
2022
Mr K Taylor 1 January 2020 4 years Audit 100%
Remuneration
Ms 3 Trump 18 Apri@?i)l? | Sine die Nominations 82%
Principal
Mr E Uygen 1 August 2021 4 years 100%
Mr R Westcott | 20 October 2021 | To 31 100%
bParent July
2023 |
! E

Mr R Smith, an independent governance professional, acts as Clerk to the Corporation.

The governance professional ensures that his knowledge of regulation and best
practice remains current through attendance at sector body webinars and by various
legal and other briefings.

It is the Corporation’s responsibility to bring independent judgement to bear on issues
of strategy, performance, resources and standards of conduct.

The Corporation is provided with reqular and timely information on the overall financial
performance of the College together with other information such as performance
against targets, proposed budgets and major capital expenditure, guality, curriculum
and planning matters, equality and diversity information, safeguarding and Prevent,
health and safety and environmentat issues. The Corporation meets at least twice each
term.

The Corporation reviews at least annually adherence to the Strategic Plan, and to the
values which underpin the Plan, and ensures by the diligence of its scrutiny that it is
kept fully informed by the College management in this regard. It has not had occasion
to remark any deviation from agreed objectives, nor any serious concerns that they
will not be met,

The Corporation conducts the majority of its business at its meetings and has
three committees: Audit, Remuneration and Search & Governance (renamed
Neminations in June 2022). Each committee has terms of reference, which have been
approved by the Corporation. Full minutes of meetings except those deemed to be
confidential by the Corporation are available from the Clerk to the Corporation at Hills
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Road Sixth Form College, Hills Road, Cambridge, CB2 8PE and the approved minutes
of meetings can also be viewed on the College’s website www, hillsroad.ac. uk.

The Clerk to the Corporation maintains a register of interests of the members where
there might be a potential conflict with their fiduciary duties. The register is available
for inspection on the College website.

All Members of the Corporation may take independent professional advice in
furtherance of their duties at the College’s expense and have access to the Clerk to
the Corporation, who is responsible to the Corporation for ensuring that all applicable
procedures and regulations are complied with. The appointment, appraisal and
removal of the Clerk are responsibilities of the Corporation.

Formal agendas, papers and reports are supplied to Members of the Corporation in a
timely manner prior to meetings. Briefings are also provided on an ad-hoc basis.

A two thirds majority of the Corporation are non-executives, who are independent and
free from any business or other relationship which could interfere with the exercise of
their independent judgement. No individual or group dominates the Corporation’s
decision-making process.

There are clear divisions of responsibility in that the roles of the Corporation, the
Principal of the College and the Clerk to the Corporation are exercised separately as
provided in the Articles of Government.

Appointments to the Corporation

New appointments to the Corporation are a matter for consideration by the
Corporation as a whole. The Corporation has a Search & Governance Committee {see
above) which is responsible for the selection and nomination of candidates for
appointment by the Corporation.

Members of the Corporation are appointed for a term of office not exceeding four
years; a second term nobt exceeding four vears is possible, with total service not
normally exceeding two terms.

The Corporation is responsible for ensuring that appropriate training is provided (o its
members as required. Members of the Corporation receive a thorough induction on
appointment intended to cover all aspects of their responsibilities. On appointment to
the Audit Committee, a further induction relevant to its work is given. In addition,
members receive regular updates on public policy, sector developments and
regulatory changes.  Safeguarding and child protection (inciuding the Prevent
strategy) are accorded a high priority, and members are updated at least annualiy to
ensure that they remain vigitant in exercising their proper responsibilities.

Corporation Performance

There were eight Corporation meetings in the yvear and attendance during the vear
from 1 August 2021 to 31 July 2022 was 83% (2020-21: 89%). Attendance at all
meetings  {including committees) was 84% (2020-21: 91%). The Corporation
reviewed the College Self-Assessment Report in the Autumn Term - student
performance at the College continues te be very strong.
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The Corporation reviewed an update of the College Management Accounts (including
those of the subsidiary undertaking) at least termly, reviewed the Annual Report and
Accounts at a meeting in the Autumn Term, conducted a detailed examination of the
estimates of income and expenditure for the following year and of the College’s rofling
two-year financial forecast at a meeting in the Summer Term, and oversaw the
progress of various estate developments.

There were three Search & Governance Committee meetings in the vear. A meeting
held in the Autumn Term recommended a candidate for appointment as parent
member of the Corporation. It also conducted an assessment of the Corporation’s
overall performance. At its Spring Term meeting, the Committee approved on behalf
of the Corporation a revision of the Bye Laws, and reviewed an audit of skills available
to the Corporation from among its members.

Evidence of format compliance with regulations may be found in the various minutes
of the Corporation and its committees, all of which have been approved in
accordance with regulation and which are prima facie evidence of the proceedings to
which they relate, particularly those of the Audit Committee relating to compliance
with financial control and reporting requirements, and the Search & Governance
Committee relating to compliance with the procedures attending the appointment of
members of the Corporation. The minutes of the Corporation record those decisions
reserved to it under the Instrument and Articles of Government together with
approvals, including any formal arrangements entered into with contractors, properly
falling within its remit.

Evidence for assessing the exercise of each of the Corporation’s responsibilities is also
contained within the minutes of the Corporation and its commitiees which are
approved as prima facie evidence of the proceedings to which they relate.

Remuneration Committee

There were two Remuneration Committee meetings in the year. Throughout the year,
the College’s Remuneration Commitiee comprised the Chair and three other members
of the Corporation. The Committee’s responsibilities are to make recommendations to
the Corporation on the remuneration and benefits of the Principal and other senior
post-holders and the Clerk to the Corporation and, at appropriate times, to consider
succession plans for senior posts. Details of the remuneration for the year ended 31
July 2022 are set out in note 7 to the financial statements.

Audit Commitiee

There were four Audit Committee meetings in the year. The Audit Committee
comprises between three and six members of the Corperation. The Chair of the
Corporation and the Principal are not eligibie for membership of the Committee but
attend its proceedings if invited, The Committee is led by a Chair who is independent
of the Corporation. The Committee operates in accordance with written terms of
reference approved by the Corporation. Its purpose is to advise the Corporation on
the adequacy and effectiveness of the College’s system of internal control and its
arrangements for risk management control and governance processes,

The Audit Committee meets at least four times a year and provides a forum for
reporting by the Coliege's internal and financial statement auditors, who have access
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to the Committee for independent discussion, without the presence of College or
Corporation officers. The Committee also receives and considers reports from the
main Further Education funding bodies as they affect the College’s business.

The College’s internal auditors review the systems of internal control, risk
management controls and governance processes, in accordance with an agreed plan
of input and report their findings to management and the Audit Committee,

Management ang, for the Corporation, the Clerk to the Corporation, are responsible
for the implementation of agreed audit recommendations and internal audit
undertakes periodic follow-up reviews, to ensure such recommendations have been
implemented.

The Audit Committee also advises the Corporation on the appointment of internal and
financial statements auditors and their remuneration for both audit and non-audit work
as well as reporting annually to the Corporation,

The current external auditors (Buzzacott LLP} were appointed for & maximum of five
years, following a formal tendering process in February 2020 (this will be re-tendered
in early 2025), with their first audit related to the year ended 31 July 2020.

The Audit Committee has advised the board of governors that the Corporation has an
effective framework for governance and risk management in place. The Audit
Committee believes the Corporation has effective internal controls in place.

Internal Control

Scope of Responsibility

The Corporation is ultimately responsible for the College’s system of internal controf
and for reviewing its effectiveness. However, such a system is designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide
only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material mis-statement or loss.

The Corporation has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Principal, as
Accounting Officer, for maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports
the achievement of the College’s policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding the
public funds ang assets for which the Principal is personally responsible, in accordance
with the responsibilities assigned to her in the Financial Memorandum between the
College and the funding bodies.

The Principal is also responsible for reporting to the Corporation any material
weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather
than to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can
therefore only provide reasonable and not absclute assurance of effectiveness, The
system of internal control is based on a continuing process designed to identify and
prioritise the risks to the achievement of College policies, aims and objectives, to
evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be




HILLS ROAD SIXTH FORM COLLEGE GROUP ACCOUNTS
Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control
Year ended 31 July 2022 {(continued)

realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of
internal control has been in place in Hills Road Sixth Form College throughout the year
ended 31 July 2022 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts.

Capacity to handle risk

In reviewing risk, the Corporation is mindful of the need to ensure sound finance over
the long-term, and the development and preservation of the College’'s assets
(including the estate). It also bears in mind how closely the College’s business model
addresses issues arising from considerations of student demography and the
attendant demand for courses in order to ensure that provision continues to meet the
needs of the community it serves,

The Corporation has reviewed the key risks to which the Coliege is exposed together
with the operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to
mitigate those risks. The Corporation is of the view that there is a formal continuing
process for identifying, evaluating and managing the College’s significant risks that
has been in piace for the period ended 31 July 2022, and up to the date of approval
of the annual report and accounts. This process is regularly reviewed by the
Corporation.

The risk and control framework

The system of internal control is based on a framework of regular management
information, administrative procedures including the segregation of duties, and a
system of delegation and accountability. In particular it includes:

s comprehensive budgeting and forecasting systems with an annual budget and
financial forecast, which is reviewed and agreed by the governing body;

» regular reviews by the governing body of periodic and annual financial reports
which indicate financial performance against forecasts;

* setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

® clearly defined capital investment control guidelines; and

e the adoption of formal project management disciplines, where appropriate.

The College has an internal audit service which operates in accordance with the
reguirements of the ESFA’s Post-16 Audit Code of Practice. The work of the internal
audit service is informed by an analysis of the risks to which the Coliege is exposed,
and annual internal audit plans are based on this analysis. The analysis of risks and
the internal audit ptans are endorsed by the Corpoeration on the recommendation of
the Audit Committee, At a minimum of annually, the Head of Internal Audit (HIA)
provides the Corporation with a report on internal audit activity in the College. The
report includes the Head of Interna!l Audit’s independent opinion on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Coliege’s system of risk management, conirols and governance
processes,

Review of effectiveness
As Accounting Officer, the Principal has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness

of the system of internal control, The Principal’s review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control is informed by:
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& the work of the internal auditors;

® the work of the managers within the College who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the internal control framework; and

e comments made by the College’s financial statements and regularity auditors
in their management letters and other reports,

The Principal has been advised on the implications of the result of her review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control by the Audit Committee which oversees
the work of the internal auditor and other sources of assurance, and a plan to address
weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

The senior management team receives reports setting out key perfermance and risk
indicators, and considers possible controt issues brought to their attention by early
warning mechanisms which are embedded within the departments and reinforced by
risk awareness training. The senior management team and the Audit Committee also
receive reguiar reports from internal audit and other sources of assurance, which
inciude recommendations for improvement, The Audit Committee’s role in this area is
confined to a high-level review of the arrangements for internal control.

The Corporation’s agenda includes a regular item for consideration of risk and control
and receives reports thereon from the senior management team and the Audit
Committee. The emphasis is on obtaining the relevant degree of assurance, not merely
reporting by exception. At its December 2021 meeting, the Corporation carried out
the annual assessment for the year ended 31 July 2021 by considering documentation
from the Audit Committee, the senior management team and internal audit and taking
account of events since 31 July 2021,

Based on the advice of the Audit Committee and the Principal, the Corporation is of
the opinion that the College has an adequate and effective framework for governance,
risk management and control, and has fulfilled its statutory responsibility for the
effective and efficient use of resources, the solvency of the institution and the
Corporation (including approving the annual estimates of income and expenditure),
and the safeqguarding of their assets.

Going Concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Corporation considers that the College has
adequate resources to confinue in operational existence for the life of the current
financial forecast, to 31 July 2023 and beyond. For this reason, the College continues
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 6 December 2022 and signed
on its behalf by:

Flfbe R

Kevin Taylor Jo Trump
Acting Chair of the Corporation Principal
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Statement of Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

Statement of the Accounting Officer

As Accounting Officer 1 confirm that the Corporation has had due regard to the
requirements of grant funding agreements and contracts with ESFA and has
considered its responsibility to notify ESFA of material irreqularity, impropriety and
non-compliance with terms and conditions of funding.

I confirm on behalf of the Corporation that after due enquiry, and to the best of my
knowledge, I am able to identify any material irregular or improper use of funds by
the Corporation, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding,

under the Corporation’s grant funding agreements and contracts with ESFA, or any
other public funder.

1 confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding

noncompliance have been discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the
date of this statement, these will be notified to ESFA.

Jo Trump

Accounting Officer

6 December 2022

Statement of Chair of Governors

On behalf of the Corporation, I confirm that the Accounting Officer has discussed their
statement of regularity, propriety and compliance with the board and that I am content
that it is materially accurate.

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation and signed on its behalf by:

%

Kevin Taylor
Acting Chair of the Corporation

6 December 2022
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The Members of the Corporation of the College are required to present audited
financial statements for each financial year.

Within the terms and conditions of the College’s grant funding agreements and
contracts with ESFA, the Corporation, through its Accounting Officer, is required to
prepare financial statements and an operating and financial review for each financial
year in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice - Accounting for
Further and Higher Education, ESFA's College Accounts Direction 2021-22 and the
UK’'s Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs and its surplus / deficit of income over expenditure for that period.

In preparing the financial statements the Corporation is required to:

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

« make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

« state whether applicable Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements:

« assess whether the corporation is a going concern, noting the key supporting
assumptions qualifications or mitigating actions as appropriate; and

« prepare financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate
to assume that the College will continue in operation.

The Corporation is also required to prepare a Members’ Report, in accordance with
paragraphs 3.22 to 3.27 of the FE and HE SORP, that describes what it is trying to do
and how it is going about it, including the legal and administrative status of the
Coliege.

The Corporation is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose
with reasonable accuracy, at any time, the financial position of the College and enable
it to ensure that the financial statements are prepared in accordance with the relevant
legislation including the Further and Higher Education Act 1992 and Charities Act 2011,
and relevant accounting standards. It is responsible for taking steps that are
reasonably open to it in order to safeguard the assets of the Coliege and to prevent
and detect fraud andg other irregularities.

The maintenance and integrity of the College website is the responsibility of the
Corporation of the College. The work carried out by the auditors does not involve
consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility
tor any changes that may have occurreg to the financial statements since they were
initially presented on the website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in
other jurisdictions.

Members of the Corporation are responsible for ensuring that expenditure and income
are applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and that the financial transactions
conform to the authorities that govern them. In addition, they are responsible for
ensuring that funds from the ESFA, and any other public funds, are used only in
accordance with the ESFA's grant funding agreements and contracts and any other
conditions that may be prescribed from time to time by the ESFA, or any other public
funder. Members of the Corporation must ensure that there are appropriate financial
and management controls in place to safeguard public and other funds and ensure
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Year ended 31 July 2022

they are used properly. In addition, Members of the Corporation are responsible for
securing economic, efficient and effective management of the corporation’s resources
and expenditure so that the benefits that should be derived from the application of
public funds from the ESFA and other public bodies are not put at risk.

Approved by order of the Members of the Corporation and signed on behalf of the
Corporation:

F T

Kevin Taylor
Acting Chair of the Corporation & December 2022
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Corporation of Hilis Road Sixth
Form College

Year ended 31 July 2022

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Hills Road Sixth Form College (the
‘College’) for the year ended 31 July 2022 which comprise the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in reserves, the balance
sheet, the statement of cash flows, the principal accounting policies, and the
notes to the financial statements. The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 “The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion, the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the College’s affairs as at 31 July
2022 and of its deficit of income under expenditure for the year then
ended;

e have Deen properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
(UK} (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the auditer’'s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Coilege
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitics in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the members of
the Corporation’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively,
may cast significant doubt on the College’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the members of the Corporation
with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this
report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report
other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The
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Year ended 31 July 2022

members of the Corporation are responsible for the other information contained
within the annual report, Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and, except to the extent otherwise expiicitly stated in
our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies
or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this
gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conctude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to
which the Post 16 Code of Practice issued by the Education and Skills Funding
Agency requires us to report to you if, in our opinjon:

e proper accounting records have not been kept;

o the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting
records and returns; or

« all the information and explanations required for the audit were not
received.

Responsibilities of Governors

As explained more fully in the statement of responsibilities of members of the
Corporation, the members of the Corporation are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view, and for such internal control as the members of the
Corporation determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial staterments, the members of the Corporation are
responsibie for assessing the College’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to geing concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting uniess the members of the Corporation either
intend to liquidate the College or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will aiways detect a material
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misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reascnably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined
above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including
fraud. The extent te which our procedures are capable of detecting
irreguiarities, including fraud is detailed below:

Our approach to identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement
in respect of irregularities, including fraud and non-compliance with laws and
regulations, was as follows:

e the engagement partner ensured that the engagement team collectively
had the appropriate competence, capabilities and skills to identify or
recognise non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations;

¢ we identified the laws and regulations applicable to the College through
discussions with management, and from our knowledge and experience
of the sector;

¢« we focused on specific laws and regulations which we considered may
have a direct material effect on the financial statements or the
operations of the College, including the Further and Higher Education Act
1992, funding agreements with the ESFA and associated funding rules,
ESFA regulaticns, data protection legislation, anti-bribery, safeguarding,
employment, heaith and safety legislation;

¢ we assessed the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations
identified above through making enguiries of management and
inspecting legal correspondence; and

e identified laws and regulations were communicated within the audit team
regularly ana the team remained alert to instances of non-compliance
throughout the audit.

We assessed the susceptibility of the College’s financial statements to material
misstatement, including obtaining an understanding of how fraud might occur,
by
« making enquiries of management as to where they considered there was
susceptibility to fraud, their knowledge of actual, suspected and alleged
fraud: and
e considering the internal controls in place to mitigate risks of fraud and
non-compliance with laws and regulations.

To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls,
We!
« performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected
retationships;
¢« tested journal entries to identify unusual transactions; and
¢ assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the
accounting estimates set out in the accounting policies were indicative
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of potential bias;

In response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and
requlations, we designed procedures which included, but were not limited to:
s agreeing financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting
documentation;
« reading the minutes of Corporation meetings;
« enquiring of management as to actual and potential litigation and claims;
and
s« reviewing any available correspondence with HMRC and the College’s
legal advisors (although none was noted as being received by the
College).

There are inherent limitations in our audit procedures described above. The
more removed that laws and regulations are from financial transactions, the
less likely it is that we would become aware of non-compliance, Auditing
standards also limit the audit procedures required to identify non-compliance
with laws and regulations to enguiry of the members of the Corporation and
other management and the inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence,
if any.

Material misstatements that arise due to fraud can be harder to detect than
those that arise from error as they may involve deliberate concealment or
collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial
Reporting Council’s website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the College’s members, as a body, in accordance
with the College's Articles of Government. Our audit work has been undertaken
so that we might state to the College’s members those matters we are required
to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the College and the College’s members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

........................................................................................

Buzzacott LLP
130 Wood Street
London

EC2V 6DL
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Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on Regularity to the
Corporation of Hills Road Sixth Form College and Secretary of State for
Education, acting through Education and Skills Funding Agency (the
ESFA)

Year ended 31 July 2022

I accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 3 June 2020 and
further to the requirements and conditions of funding in the ESFA’s grant
funding agreements and contracts, or those of any other public funder, we have
carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether anything
has come to our attention that would suggest, in all material respects, the
expenditure disbursed and income received by Hills Road Sixth Form College
during the pericd 1 August 2021 to 31 July 2022 have not been applied to the
purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform
to the authorities which govern them.

The framework that has been applied is set out in the Post-16 Audit Code of
Practice (the Code) issued by the ESFA and in any relevant conditions of
funding concerning adult education notified by a relevant funder. In line with
this framework, cur work has specifically not considered income received
from the main funding grants generated through the Individualised Learner
Record data returns, for which the ESFA has other assurance arrangements in
place.

This report is made solely to the corporation of Hills Road Sixth Form Coliege
and the ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter. Our
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the corporation of Hills
Reoad Sixth Form College and the ESFA those matters we are reguired to state
in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept, or assume, responsibility to anyene other than the
corporation of Hills Road Sixth Form College and the ESFA for our work, for
this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Hills Road Sixth Form College and the
reporting accountant

The corporation of Hills Road Sixth Form Coliege is responsible, under the
requirements of the Further & Higher Education Act 1992, subsequent
legislation and related regulations and guidance, for ensuring that
expenditure disbursed, and income recelved, are applied for the purposes
intended by Parliament, and the financial transactions conform to the
authorities that govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United
Kingdom by our profession’s ethical guidance and are 1o obtain limited
assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Code. We report to you whether anvthing has come to
our attention in carrying cut our work which suggests that in all material
respects, expenditure disbursed and income received, during the period 1
August 2021 to 31 July 2022 have not been applied to purposes intended by
Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities
which govern them.
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Reporting Accountant’'s Assurance Report on Regularity to the
Corporation of Hills Road Sixth Form College and Secretary of 5tate for
Education, acting through Education and Skills Funding Agency (the
ESFA) (continued)

Year ended 31 July 2022

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Code issued by the
ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in that
framework. The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform
such procedures as to obtain information and explanaticns in order to provide
us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity. A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a
reasonable assurance engagement and consequently does not enable us to
obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we
do not express a positive opinion. Our engagement includes examination, on
a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity of the corporation’s income
and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

s An assessment of the risk of material irregularity and impropriety
across alt of the Coilege’s activities;

« Further testing and review of the areas identified through the risk
assessment including enquiry, identification of control processes and
examination of supporting evidence across all areas identified as well
as additional verification work where considered necessary; and

+« Consideration of evidence obtained through the work detailed above
and the work completed as part of our financial statements audif in
order to support the regularity conciusion.

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests
that in ail material respects, the expenditure disbursed and income received
during the period 1 August 2021 to 31 July 2022 has not been applied to
purposes intended by Parliament, and the financial transactions do not
conform to the authorities that govern them.

Buzzacoit LLP
130 Wood Strest
London

EC2V 6DL
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Year ended 31 July 2022

INCOME

Funding body grants

Tultion fees and Education contracts
Other income

Iinvestment income

Donations and endowments

Total Income

EXPENDITURE

Staff costs

Other aperating expenses
Depreciation

Interest and other finance costs

Total Expenditure

Deficit on continuing operations after
depreciation of assets at valuation and

hefore tax

Surplus generated by subsidiary

undertaking and transferred to the

College under Gift Aid

Deficit on continuing operations after
depreciation of assets at valuation and

tax

Actuarial gain/{loss) in respect of

pension schemes

Total comprehensive income for the

vear

The Income and Expenditure account is in respect of continuing activities.,

Mote

s W

Year ended 21

Year ended 31

July 2022 July 2621
Group College Group College
£0600 £000 £000 £000
13,811 13,811 12,707 12,707
334 334 368 368
1,072 910 815 741
10 10 2 2

4 4 2 2
15,231 15,069 13,894 13,820
11,289 11,289 10,619 10,619
3,560 3,549 2,561 2,541
741 741 773 723
139 139 109 109
315,729 15,718 14,012 13,992
(498) (649) (118) (172)
- 151 . 54
(498) (498) (118) (118)
7,468 7,468 (21) (21)
6,970 6,570 (139) (139)
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Consolidated and College Statement of Changes in Reserves

Year ended 31 July 2022

Income and Revaluation Restricted Total
expenditure reserve reserve
account
Group 5,661 3,873 41 10,575
Balance at 1 August 2020
Other comprehensive income (139} - - (139}
Transfers between revaluation and
income and expenditure reserves 92 (92} - -
{47) (92} - {139)
Balance at 31 July 2021 6,614 3,781 41 10,436
Other comprehensive income 6,570 - - £,870
Transfers between revaluation and 91 (91} - -
income and expenditure reserves
Total comprehensive income for 7,061 (91) - 6,970
the vear
Balance at 31 July 2022 13,675 3,690 41 17,406
College 6,643 3,873 41 10,557
Balance at 1 August 2620
Gther comprehensive income {139) - - {139
Transfers between revaluation and
income and expenditure reserves 92 (92) - -
(a7 (92) - (139)

Balance at 31 July 2021 6,596 T 3,781 41 10,418
Orher comprehensive income 6,970 - - 8,970
Transfers between revaluation and 91 (913 - -
income and expenditure reserves
Total comprehensive income for 7.061 (91 - 6,970
the vear
Balance at 31 July 2022 13,657 3,690 41 17,388

31



HILLS ROAD SIXTH FORM COLLEGE GROUP ACCOUNTS

Balance Sheets as at 31 July 2022

Note Group College Group College
2022 2022 2021 2021
£000 EQO0G £GOG £060
MNon current assets
Tangibie fixed assets 16 21,191 21,191 20,627 20,627
L.23,191 21,191 20,627 20,627
Current assets
Stocks 22 21 1s 18
Trade and other receivables 12 672 731 495 511
Investments 11 1 1 i 1
Cash and other equivalents 17 3,887 3,890 3,403 3,344
4,682 4,643 3,e18 3,874
bess Creditors: amounis
falling due within one yvear 13 (1,621 {1,600) (1,407 (1,381
Net current assets 3,061 3,043 2,511 2,493
Total assets less current
fiabilities 24,252 24,234 23,138 23,120
Crediters: amounts falling due
after more than orie year 14 {(6,417) {6,417) (5,964) {5,964)
Provisions
Defined benefit obligations ie (429) (429} (6,738) {6,738
Total net assets 17,406 17,6388 10,436 10,418
Restricted reserves
Endowed funds 41 41 ) 41 41
Total restricted reserves L4 . 4x . 4t 41
Unrestricted Reserves
Income and expenditure account 13,675 13,657 £,614 6,596
Revaluation reserve _..=26%0 3680 3781 3,781
Total unrestricted reserves 17,365 17,347 1G,395 10,377
Total Reserves 17,406 17,388 10,436 10,418

The financial statements were approved by the Corporation and authorised for issue on 6

December 2022 and were signed on its behall by:

..

Kevin Taylor ! Mg Jo Trump
Acting Chair of the Caorporation Principal

The notes on pages 34 to 55 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended 31 July 2022

2022 2021
£000 £000
Cash flows from Operating Activities
Surplus/{deficit} for the year 6,970 {139)
Adjustment for non-cash items
Depreciation 741 723
{(Increase)/decrease in stocks (3) 3
increase in debtors (177) {73)
Increase in creditors due within one vear 217 537
Increase/(decrease) in creditors due after one year 551 {170)
Pensions costs tess contributions payable {6,425 726
Adjustment for investing or financing activities
Investment income (103 {2}
Interest payable 139 109
MNet cash flows from operating activities 2,GG3 1,714
Cash flows from investing activities
Investment income 10 2
Payments made to acquire fixed assets {1,305) (344)
(1,295)  (342)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid {23 {(21)
Capital element of finance lease rental payments - {(20)
Repayments of amounts borrowed (101 {1086)
{124) (147)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents in the year B4 1,225
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the vear 3,403 2,178
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the vear 3,987 3,403
Analysis on changes in net debt
As at 1 Other As at 31
August Cash non-cash Juty
2021 flows changes 2022
Cash 3,403 584 - 3,987
Loans falling due within one year {104 101 {98) (1013
Loans falling due outside of one year (861} - 98 {863
{1,065} 101 - {964}
Total 2,338 685 3,023

The notes on pages 34 Lo 55 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Accounts {continued}

Notes to the Accounts
Statement of Accounting Policies and estimation techniques

The fallowing accounting poficies have been applied consistently in dealing with items
which are considered material in relation to the financial statements.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordarnce with the Statement of
Recommended Practice: Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2019 (the
2019 FE HE SORP), the College Accounts Direction for 2021 to 2022 and in
accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 - “"The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland” (FRS 102). The
College is a public benefit entity and has therefore applied the relevant public benefit
requirements of FRS 102.

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use
of certein critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
judgement in applying the College's accounting policies.

Basis of accounting

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost
convention.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the College and its subsidiary,
Cantabrigian Limited, controlied by the Group. Control is achieved where the Group
has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
cbtain benefits from its activities. Intra-group sales and profits are eliminated fully
on consolidation. In accordance with FRS 102, the activities of the student union
have not been consolidated because the College does not control those activities. All
financial statements are made up to 31 July 2022,

Going Concern

The aclivities of the College, together with the factors likely to affecl s future
development and performance are set out in the Operating and Financial Review.
The financial position of the college, its cashfiow, liquidity and borrowings are
presented in the Financial Statements and accompanying notes.

The Coliege has a national reputation and is acknowledged as amongst the best in
the country for successful outcomes from examination results and university
progression. This, together with consistent oversubscription for student places,
ensures that the College is maintained on & sound operational footing.

The College has a proactive approach to risk management, with senior managers
tasked with identifying any new risks and monitoring and evaluating previously
identified risks every term. The risk register is reviewed by the audit committee each
term and annually by the Corporation along with an annual presentation of a risk
report.
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Notes to the Accounts {continued)

The financial positicn of the College is strong with hard-working, qualified staff
running the finances of the College ali carefully scrutinised and approved by the
College Strategy Team, the Corporation and external auditors. The College has
entered into loans with a remaining balance of £0.96 million, to assist with Phase V
of the College’s Property Strategy. The cashflow, liguidity and borrowings are
described in the Financial Statements and accompanying notes.

The College has a reasonable expectation that it has adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future, and for this reason will continue
to adopt the going concern basis in the preparation of its Financial Statements.

Recognition of income
Revenue Grant Funding

Government revenue grants include funding body recurrent grants and other grants
and are accounted for under the accrual model as permitted by FRS 102. Funding
body recurrent grants are recognised in line with best estimates for the period of
what is receivable and depend on the particular income stream involved. The final
grant income is normally determined with the conciusion of the vear end
reconciliation process with the funding body at the end of November following the
year end, and the results of any funding audits. 16-18 learner responsive funding is
not normally subject to reconciliation and is therefore not subject to contract
adjustments.

Grants from non-government sources are recognised in income when the College is
entitled to the income and performance related conditions have been met, Income
received in advance of performance related conditions being met is recognised as
deferred income within creditors on the balance sheet and released to income as the
conditions are met.

Capital Grant Funding

Government capital grants are capitalised, held as deferred income and recognised
in income over the expected usefui life of the asset, under the accrual method as
permitted by FRS 102, Other capital grants are recognised in income when the
College is entitled to the funds subject to any performance related conditions being
met. Income received in advance of performance related conditions being met is
recognised as deferred income within creditors on the balance sheet and released to
income as the conditions are met,

Feg Income

Income from Tuition Fees is recognised in the period for which it is receivable and
includes all fees chargeable to students or to their sponsors.

Investment Income

All income from short-term deposits is credited to the income and expenditure
accoeunt in the period in which it is earned on a receivable basis,
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Notes to the Accounts {continued)

Agency arrangements

The Cotlege acts as an agent in the collection and payment of certain discretionary
support funds. Related payments received from the funding bodies and subseguent
disbursements to students are excluded from the income and expenditure of the
College where the College is exposed te minimal risk or enjoys minimal economic
benefit related to the transaction.

Accounting for post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits to employees of the College are principaily provided by
the Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS) and the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS). These are defined benefit plans, which are externally funded and contracted
out of the State Second Pension.

Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS)

The TPS is an unfunded scheme. Contributions to the TPS are calculated so as to
spread the cost of pensions over employees’ working lives with the College in such
a way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of current and future
pensionabie payroll. The contributions are determined by qualified actuaries on the
basis of valuations using a prospective benefit method.

The TPS is & multi-employer scheme and there is insufficient information available
to use defined benefit accounting. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined
contribution plan and the contributions recognised as an expense in the income
statement in the periods during which services are rendered by employees.

Cambridgeshire Local Government Pension Scheme (LGFS)

The LGPS is a funded scheme. The assets of the LGPS are measured using closing
fair values. LGPS liabilities are measured using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivatent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained
at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged
to operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme
introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as
part of staff costs as Incurred,

Net interest on the net defined benefit lability/asset is also recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and comprises the interest cost on the defined
benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculeted by
muitiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the
rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest
income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is
recognised in interest and other finance costs.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in Other Comprehensive
Income.
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Short term Employment benefits

Short term employment benefits such as salaries and compensated absences
(holiday pay) are recognised as an expense in the year in which the employees
render service to the Group. Any unused benefits are accrued and measured as the
additional amount the Group expects to pay as a result of the unused entittement.

Enhanced Pensions

The actual cost of any enhanced ongoing pension to a former member of staff is paid
by a Coilege annually. An estimate of the expected future cost of any enhancement
to the on-going pension of a former member of staff is charged in full to the Group's
income and expenditure account in the year that the member of staff retires. In
subsequent years a charge is made to provisions in the balance sheet.

Non-current Assets - Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Certain items of fixed assets that had been revalued
to fair value on or prior to the date of transition to the FE HE SORP, are measured
on the basis of deemed cost, being the revalued amount at the date of that
revatuation.

Land and buildings

The College’s buildings are specialised buildings and therefore it is not appropriate
to value them on the basis of open market value, Land and buildings inherited from
the Local Education Authority are stated in the balance sheet at valuation on the
basis of depreciated replacement cost. Land and buildings acquired since
incorporation are included in the balance sheet at cost inclusive of any irrecoverable
VAT. Freehold land is not depreciated as it is considered to have an infinite useful
fife.

The main College buildings are depreciated over their expected useful economic life
to the College of 60 years and the Sports Centre over 40 years, Photo-voltaic cells
are depreciated over 25 vears,

Where land and buildings are acquired with the aid of specific grants, they are
capitalised and depreciated as explained in Recognition of Income above.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of any fixed asset may not be
recoverable.

On adoption of FRS 102, the College followed the transitional provision to retain the
book value of land and buildings, which were revalued in 1992 as deemed cost but
not to adopt a policy of revaluations of these properties in the future.
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Assets under construction

Assets under construction are accounted for at cost, based on the value of architects’
certificates and other direct costs, incurred to 31 July 2022, They are not depreciated
until they are brought into use.

Subsequent expenditure on existing fixed assefs

Where significant expenditure is incurred on tangible fixed assets after initial
purchase it is charged to income in the period it is incurred, unless it increases the
future benefits to the College, in which case it is capitalised and depreciated on the
relevant basis.

Eqguipment

Equipment costing less than £1,000 per individual item is recegnised as expenditure
in the period of acquisition. All other equipment is capitalised at cost.

Equipment is depreciated over its useful economic life using the straight line method.

The capital areas are depreciated as follows:

Equipment 10 vears straight line
Furniture 10 years straight line
Audio Visual equipment 5 vyears  straight line
Feprographics equipment 5 vears straight line
I.T. equipment 5vears  straight line
Sports BEquipment 5 years  straight line

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be
recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets and their
recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure,

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as expenditure in the period in which they are
incurred.

Leased assets

Costs in respect of operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the
lease term to the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. Any lease
premiums or incentives relating to leases signed after 1 August 2014 are spread over
the minimum lease term.

Leasing agreements which transfer to the College substantially all the benefits and
risks of ownership of an asset are treated as finance leases.
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Assets held under finance leases are recognised initially at the fair value of the leased
asset {or, if lower, the present value of minimum lease payments) at the inception
of the lease. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet
as a finance lease obligation. Assets held under finance leases are included in
tangible fixed assets and depreciated and assessed for impairment losses in the
same way as owned assets,

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the
reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charges are allocated over the
period of the lease in proportion to the capital element outstanding.

Investments
Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment in the
individuat financial statements.

Other investments

Listed investmenis held as non-current assets and current asset investments, which
. may include listed investments, are stated at fair value, with movements recegnised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Investments comprising unguoted
equity instruments are measured at fair value, estimated using a valuation
technigue.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of their cost (using the first in, first out (FIFO)
method) and net realisable value, being selling price less costs to complete and sell.
Where necessary, provision is made for obsolete, slow-moving and defective items.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash in hand, deposits repayable on demand and overdrafts. Deposits
are repavable on demand if they are in practice available within 24 hours without
penalty.

Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in vaiue. An investment
qualifies as a cash equivalent when it has maturity of 3 months or less from the date
of acquisition.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liahilities and equity are classified according to the substance of the financial
instrument’s contractual obligations, rather than the financial instrument’s legal form.

All foans, investments and short term deposits held by the Group are classified as
basic financial instruments in accordance with FRS 102, These instruments are
initially recorded at the transaction price less any transaction costs (historical cost).
FRS 102 requires that basic financial instruments are subsequently measured at
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amortised cost, however the Group has calculated that the difference between the
historical cost and amortised cost basis is not material and so these financial
instruments are stated on the balance sheet gt historical cost. Loans and investments
that are payable or receivable within one year are not discounted.

Taxation

The Coliege is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 Finance
Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definiticn of a charitable company for UK
corperation tax purposes. Accordingly, the College is potentially exempt from
taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories covered by
section 478-488 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of
Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied
exclusively to charitable purposes.

The College is partially exempt in respect of Value Added Tax, so that it can only
recover a minor element of VAT charged on its inputs. Irrecoverable VAT on inputs
is included in the costs of such inputs and added to the cost of tangible fixed assets
as appropriate, where the inputs themselves are tangible fixed assets by nature.

The College's subsidiary company, Cantabrigian Limited, is subject to Corporation
tax and VAT in the same way as any commercial organisation.

Provisions and contingent Labilities

Provisions are recognised when:
e the College has a present fegal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event:
¢ it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required to settle the
obligation; and
¢ a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount expected to be
required to settle the obligation is recognised at present value using a pre-tax
discount rate. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as a finance cost in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period it arises,

A contingent liability arises from a past event that gives the College & possible
obligation whaose existence will only be confirmed by the cccurrence or otherwise of
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the College. Contingent
liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise e made but
either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount
of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the batance sheet but are disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements.

Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation
uncertainty

In preparing these financial statements, management have made the following
judgements:
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«  Determine whether leases entered into by the College either as a lessor or a
lessee are operating or finance leases. These decisions depend on an
assessment of whether the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred from the lessor to the lessee on a lease by lease basis.

« Determine whether there are indicators of impairment of the group’s tangible
assets, including goodwill. Factors taken into consideration in reaching such a
decision include the economic viability and expected future financial
performance of the asset and where it is a component of a larger cash-
generating unit, the viability and expected future performance of that unit.

Other key sources of estimation uncertainty

» Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets, other than investment properties, are depreciated over
their useful lives tsking into account residual values, where appropriate. The
actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed annually and may vary
depending on a number of factors. In re-assessing asset lives, factors such as
technological innovation and maintenance programmes are taken into account,
Residual value assessments consider issues such as future market conditions, the
remaining life of the asset and projected disposal values,

e Local Government Pension Scheme

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit
liability depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis
using a variety of assumptions, The assumptions used in determining the net cost
{income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these
assumptions, which are disclosed in note 20, will impact the carrying amount of
the pension fiability. The actuary has used a roli forward approach which projects
results from the latest full actuarial valuation perfermed at 31 March 2019 has
been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 July 2022. Any
differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuariat valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

e Estimating future income and expenditure for the purpose of assessing going
concern.

Management review budgets, forecasts and actual results in the months after the
date of these accounts to determine the going concern assessment.
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Funding Body Grants

Recurrent grants

ESFA 16-18 Funding

Devolved Formula Capital Funding
Free School Meals Funding
Cevolved Aduit Education Budget

Specific grants

Post-16 Capacity Funding

Covid testing funding

Early Career Framework

Release of government capital grants

Total

Tuition Fees and Education Contracts

Adult education fees
Music tuttion fees
Total tuition fees
Education contracts

Total

Cther Income

Release of deferred capital grants (non
funding body)

Catering and residence operations
Other income generating activities
Exam fees

tducationat visits income

Other income

Cther income from Sports and Tennis Centre

Corenavirus job retention scheme grant

Total

Year ended

Year ended

21 July 31 July
2022 2022 2021 2021
Group College Group Ceollege
000 £000 £00G0 £000

12,852 12,852 12,376 12,376
75 75 74 74
48 48 29 29
(2) (2) > 5
656 656 - -
29 29 78 78

2 2 - -

151 151 145 145
13,811 13,811 12,707 12,707
Year ended Year ended

31 July 3% July
2022 2022 2021 2621
Group College Group Coliege
£000 £000 £000 £000

235 235 220 220
55 55 -39 39
290 250 259 259
44 44 109 109
334 334 368 368
Year ended Year ended
31 July 33 July
20322 2022 2021 2021
Group College Group Coilege
£000 £000 £600 £000
27 27 27 27
/ - 3 -
475 28 248 9
&7 67 38 38
197 197 102 104
299 297 290 257

- 294 - 201

: - 107 107
1,072 810 815 . 741
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Investment Income

Year ended Year ended
31 July 31 July
2022 2021 2022 2021
Group Coliege Group College
£600 £000 £4600 £000
Bank interest receivable 10 10 2 2
Total
10 10 2 2
Donations - Group and College
2022 2021
£000 £000
Unrestricted donations 4 2
Total 4 2

Staff Costs

The average monthly number of persons {including senior post holders) employed

by the College during the year, expressed on a headcount basis, was:

2022 2021

Mo, No.
Teaching staff 213 214
Non-teaching staff 137 136
350 350

The average monthly number of persons (including senior post holders) employed

by the College during the year, expressed on a FTE basis, was:

2022 2021
No. No.
Teaching staff 107 106
Non-teaching staff _ 97 97
204 203
2022 2021
£000 £0060
Wages and salaries 7,760 7,525
Social security costs 739 719
Other pension costs (including FRS 102 (28) adjustments 2,790 2,375
of £1,043,000 2021 £705,000)- see note 20
11,289 10,619
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Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility
for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Cotlege and are
represented by the College Strategy Team which comprises the Principal, Deputy
Principal, Assistant Principal - Finance and Operations, Assistant Principal - Quality
& Systems and Assistant Principal - Curriculum Development.

Emoluments of Key management personnel, Accounting Officer and other
higher paid staff

2022 2021
No. MNo.

The number of key management personnel including the
Accounting Officer was: 5 5

The number of key management personne! and cother staff who received annual
emoluments, excluding pension contributions and employer's national insurance but
including benefits in kind, in the following ranges was:

Key management Cther staff
personnel (FTE) {(FTE)
2022 2621 2022 2021
No. MNo. No. Mo,
£60,001 to £65,000 p.a 2 2 1 1
£75,001 to £80,000 p.a. 2 2 - -
£110,001 to £115,000 p.&a - 1 - -
£115,001 to £120,000 p.a 1 - - -
5 5 i i
Key management personnel emoluments are made up as follows:
2022 2021
£000 £000
Salaries - gross of salary sacrifice and waived emoluments 402 341
Employers National Insurance 51 47
Benefits in kind R R
453 3832
Pension contributions - -
Total emoluments 548 462

There are salary sacrifice arrangements in place in respect of cycle scheme and
chitdcare vouchers. Where applicable these have been included gross in salaries.

The above emoluments include amounts payable to the Accounting Officer (who is
also the highest paid officer) of:
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Sataries
Employer’s National Insurance
Benefits in kind

Pension contributions
Total emoluments

2022 2021
£000 £000
115 115
15 14
130 129
27 26
157 155

The remuneration package of key management staff, including the Accounting
Officer, is subject to annual review by the Remuneration Committee of the governing
body who use benchmarking information to provide objective guidance,

The Accounting Officer reports to the Chair of the Corporation, who undertakes an
annual review of their performance against the Coliege’s overall objectives using
both qualitative and quantitative measures of performance.

Relationship of Accounting Officer pay and remuneration expressed as a multiple,

Basic salary as a multiple of the median of all staff

Total remuneration as a multiple of the median of all staff

2022

2.3

2.3

2021

2.2

2.2

The Members of the Corporation other than the Principal and the Staff Members did
not receive any payment from the College other than the reimbursement of travel

and subsistence expenses incurred in the course of their duties.

Other Operating Expenses

Teaching departments
Teaching support services
Other support services
Administration and central services
General education
Premises cosis:

Running costs

Maintenance

Rents and Leases
Planned maintenance
Minor internal buildings work
Calering and residence operations
Educational visits
Other expenses

2022
Group
£000
234
293

68
412
693

382
201

83
743
49
187

204

3,560

2022
College
£000
234
293

68

398
726

370
172

83
743

41
197

3,549

2021 2021
Group College
£000 £000
289 289
253 253
72 72
348 382
473 471
344 301
229 203

1 1
274 274
78 74
82 82
118 139
2,561 2,541
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Other operating expenses include:
External auditor's remuneration:

financial statements audit

other services

Internal auditor’s remuneration

Depreciation

Hire of assets under operating leases

On bank loans, overdrafts and other loans:

Pension finance costs (note 20)

Cost or valuation
AL 1 August 2021
Additions

At 31 July 20622

Depreciation
At 1 August 2021

Charge for the year

At 31 July 2022

Net book value
At 21 July 2022

At 31 July 2021

Financed by:
Capital grant
Inherited
Other

Tangible Fixed Assets -~ Group and College

HILLS ROAD SIXTH FORM COLLEGE GROUP ACCOUNTS
Notes to the Accounts {(continued)

Interest and other finance costs ~ Group and College

2022 2021
£000 £000
17 18
2 5
10 i4
741 723
o5 102
2022 2021
£000 £000
3 21
116 88
135 109
Freehold Assets
land and under
buildings construction Equipment Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
28,819 18 5,872 34,709
406 474 425 1,305
29,225 492 6,297 36,014
9,145 - 4,937 14,082
485 - 256 741
8,630 - 5,193 14,823
19,595 492 1,104 21,191
19,674 18 935 20,627
5,258 394 111 5,763
3,690 - - 3,690
10,647 88 - 993 11,738
19,595 492 1,104 21,191
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HILLS ROAD SIXTH FORM COLLEGE GROUP ACCOUNTS
Notes to the Accounts (continued)

The carrying values of the Fixed Assets are recorded in accordance with the historical
cost convention.

The deemed cost as at the date of transfer of inherited land and buildings was
based on depreciated replacement cost.

If inherited land and buildings and equipment had not been valued, they would
have been included on the historical cost basis at the following amounts:

£000
Cost -
Aggregate depreciation based on cost -

Net book value based on cost o

Land, buildings and equipment with a net book value of £3,690,000 have been
funded from Local Education Authority sources. Should these assets be sold, the
College would either have to surrender the sale proceeds to the Education and Skilis
Funding Agency or use them in accordance with the financial memorandum with the
Education and Skills Funding Agency.

Fixed assets include land and buildings with a net book value of £2,855,000, which
have been partially funded by a grant of £1,789,000 from the Further Fducation
Funding Council; land and buildings with a net book value of £3,700,000 and
£340,000 which have been partially funded by grants from the Learning and Skills
Council of £1,737,000 and £321,000 respectively; land and buildings with a net
book value of £838,000 which have been partially funded by a Building Condition
Improvement fund grant from the Young People’s Learning Agency of £108,000;
land and buildings with a net book value of £3,961,000 which have been partially
funded by a Building Condition Improvement fund grant of £1,492,000; land and
buildings with a net book value of £560,000 which have been partially funded by a
Condition Improvement fund grant of £302,000; land and buildings with a net book
vaiue of £400,000 which have been partially funded by a Post-16 Capacity fund
grant of £320,000. Should these assets be sold, the College would either have to
surrender the sale proceeds to the Education and Skills Funding Agency or use them
in accordance with the financial memorandum with the Education and Skills Funding
Agency.

Investments - Group and College

Investments Total

£000 £000

At 1 August 2021 1 1
At 31 July 2022 T 1

Investments represent £1,000 capital invested in Government bonds. In addition,
the Corporation of the College owns 100% of the issued Crdinary Shares of
Cantabrigian Limited, a company incorporated in England and Wales, at a cost of
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

£2. The principal business activity of Cantabrigian Limited is to help its parent
further education corporation in the delivery of its principal objectives and to carry
on business as a Sports Centre, with such facilities and accommeodation for indoor
and outdoor sports or games, changing rooms, refreshments and other amenities
as may be thought fit. Cantabrigian annually remits its profits to Hills Road Sixth
Form College via gift aid and retains net assets of £15,000 on its Balance Sheet.

12. Trade and other receivables

Group College Group College
Amounts falling due within one year 2022 2022 2021 2021
£000 £000 EOOO £GCO
Trade receivables 29 6 52 28
Amounts owed by group undertakings - 149 - 75
Prepayments and accrued income ‘ 643 576 443 408
6577 731 485 511
13. Creditors: Amounts Falling Due Within One Year
Group College Group Colliege
2022 2022 2021 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000
Bank loan 101 101 104 104
Trade payabies 480 469 431 412
Other taxation and social security 4729 429 210 209
Accruals and deferred income 196 186 144 138
Holiday pay accrual &4 o4 i51 151
Deferred income - government capital
granis 220 220 171 i71
Payments received in advance 131 121 185 185
Amounts owed to the Cambridge and
Peterborough  Combined  Authority  (Adult - - 11 11
Education budger)
Total L Ae21 1,600 01,407 1,381
14, Creditors: Amounts Falling Due After More Than One Year
Group  College Group Colliege
2022 2022 2021 2021
£000 £000 £0QG0 £G00
Bank loans 863 863 961 961
Referred income — government capital 5,554 5,554 5,003 5,003
grants
Total 6,417 6,417 5,964 5964
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15. Maturity of debt

Bank loans and overdrafis

Barclays bank loan is repayable as follows: Group  College Group College
2022 2022 2021 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000

In one year or less 101 101 104 104

Between one and two vears 161 101 165 105

Between two and five years 304 304 325 325

In five years or more 458 458 531 531

Total 964 964 1,065 1,065

The College received a loan of £1,616,984 from Barclays piscemeal between
December 2015 and May 2016. At 31 July 2022, £964,126 remained. The loan is
on a variable interest rate of 1.75% above the Base Rate and is payable over 10
years. At the end of 10 years, there will be around £500k to repay or a further loan
could be taken out.

i6. Provisions

Defined Total
benefit
obligations
£0060 £000
At 1 August 2021 6,738 6,738
Expenditure in the pericd (665) (665)
Additions in period (5,644) {5,644)
At 31 July 2022 429 429

Defined benefit obligations relates to the liabilities under the College’s membership
of the Local Government Pension Scheme. Furlher details are given in note 20.

17. Cash and cash equivalents (Group)

At 1 Cash Other At 31

August fiows changes July

2021 2022

£000 £000 £000 £000

Cash and cash equivalents 3,403 584 - 3,887
Total __ 3403 584 - 3,987
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Capital and other commitments
Group and

College

2622 2021
£000 £000

Commitmenis contracted for at 31 July 2022 3,032 402

Lease obligations

At 31 July the Group had minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases as follows:

Future minimum lease payments due Group College Group Coliege
2022 2022 2021 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000

Not later than one vear 101 a0 g5 84

Later than one vear and not later than five

years s L 95 68
Total 118 a1 190 152

Defined benefit obligations

The College's employees belong to two principal post-employment benefit plans: the
Teachers’ Pension Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff;
and the Cambridgeshire Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching
staff, which is managed by Cambridge County Council. Both are multi-employer
defined-benefit plans.

Total pension cost for the year 2022 2021
£G00 £000

Teachers’ Pension Scheme contributions paid 1,082 1,669
Local Government Pension Scheme:

Contributions patd 665 G601

FRS 102 (28) charge 1,045 705
Charge to the Statement of Comprehensive
income 1,708 1,306
Total Pension Cost for Year within staff

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent gualified
actuaries. The latest actuarial valuations of the TPS was 31 March 2016 and the LGPS
31 March 2019, Contributions amounting to nil (2021: £nily were payable to the
schemes at 31 July and are included in creditors.
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Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS)
Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit
scheme, governed by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. These
regulations apply to teachers in schools and other educational establishments.
Membership is automatic for teachers and lecturers at eligible institutions. Teachers
and lecturers are able to opt out of the TPS,

The Teachers' Pension Budgeting And Valuation Account

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a ‘pay as you go' basis
- these contributions, along with those made by employers, are credited to the
Exchequer under arrangements governed by the above Act. Retirement and other
pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament,

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102 (28.11), the TPS is a multi-employer pension
plan. The College is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities
of the plan.

Accordingly, the College has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has
accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined-contribution
ptan. The College has set out above the information available on the pian and the
implications for the College in terms of the anticipated contribution rates.

Valuation of The Teachers' Pension Scheme

The valuation of the TPS is carried out in line with regulations made under the Public
Service Pension Act 2013, Valuations credit the teachers’ pension account with a real
rate of return assuming funds are invested in notional investments that produce that
real rate of return.

The latest actuarial review of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The
valuation report was published by the Department for Education (the Department)
in April 2019. The valuation reported total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in
payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service to the effective date
of £218 billion, and notiona! assets (estimated future contributions together with the
notional investments held at the valuation date) of £198 billion giving a notional past
service deficit of £22 billion,.

As a result of the valuation, new employer contribution rates were set at 22.68% of
pensionable pay from September 2019 onwards (compared to 16.48% during
2018-19). DfE has agreed to pay a teacher pension employer contribution grant to
cover the additional costs during the 2021-22 academic vear,

A full copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation can be found on
the Teachers’ Pension Scheme website,

The pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £1,082,000 (2021:
£1,069,000).
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Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit plan, with the assets held in separate funds
administered by Cambridgeshire Local Authority. The total contributions made for
the year ended 31 July 2022 were £844,000, of which employer's contributions
totalied £665,000 and employees’ contributions totalled £179,000. The agreed
contribution rates for forthcoming year are 23.1% for employers and range from
5.5% to 9.9% for employees, depending on salary according to a national scale.

Principal Actuarial Assumptions

The following information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31
March 2019 updated to 31 July 2022 by a qualified independent actuary.

Rate of increase in salaries
Future pensions increases
Discount rate for scheme liabilities

At 31
July
2022
3.2%
2.7%
3.5%

At 31
Juby
2021
3.3%
2.8%
1.6%

The current mortality assumptions  include sufficient aliowance for future
improvements in mortality rates, The assumed life expectations on retirement age

6h are:

Retiring today
Males

Females

Retiring in 20 years
Males

Females

Af 31
July
2022

Years

22.0
24.2

26.0

At 31
July
2021

years

22,
24.4

P

R

3.2
6.2

The College’s share of the assets in the plan at the balance sheet date and the

expected rates of return were:

Long-
term rate
of return
expected
at 31 July
2022

Equity instruments 3.5%
Debt instruments 3.5%
Property 3.5%
Cash 3.5%
Total fair value of plan assets

Fair
Value
at 31
July
2022
£000

10,429
1,937
2,384

149

""”)73;4,8997 e

Long-
term rate
of return
expected
at 31
Julv 2021

1.6%
1.6%
1.6%
1.6%

Fair
Value
at 21
Juiy
2021
ECOO

9,323
2,366
1,948

.28
13,915

on

Pt
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Weighted average expected long term

rate of return 3.5% 1.6%
Actual return on plan assets (1.0%) 16.8%

The amount included in the balance sheet in respect of the defined benefit
pension plan is as follows:

2022 2021

£000 £000
Fair value of plan assets 14,899 13,915
Present value of plan liabilities {15,328) (20,653)
Net pensions hability (429) (6,738)

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect
of the plan are as follows:

2022 2021
£000 £000
Amounts included in staff costs
Current service cost 1,708 1,306
Past service cost - -
Total 1,708 1,306
Amounts included in interest and other finance costs
Pension finance costs (116) (88)
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Return on pension plan assets 189 2,053
Changes in assumptions underiying the present value
of plan iiabilities 8,044 {2,086)
Cther experience {839) 234
Changes in demographic assumptions 74 {252)

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive
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Movement in net defined benefit liability during year

2022 2021
£000 £000
Net defined benefit {liability) in scheme at 1 August (6,738) (5,924
Movement in year:
Current service cost {1,708) (1,306}
Employer contributions 665 601
Net interest on the defined (liability)/asset (116) (88)
Actuarial loss 7,468 (21)
Net defined benefit liability at 31 July (429) (6,738)
Asset and Liability Reconciliation
2022 2021
£000 £G00
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations
Befined benefit obligations at start of period 20,653 17,112
Current service cost 1,708 1,306
Interest cost 343 248
Contributions by scheme participants 179 176
Changes in financial assumptions (8,044) 2,056
Changes in demographic assumptions (74) 252
Other Experience 839 (234}
Estimated benefits paid (276) (263)
Defined benefit obligations at end of period 15,328 20,653
Changes in fair value of plan assels
Fair value of plan assets at start of period 13,915 11,188
Interest on plan assets 227 1640
Return on plan assets 189 2,053
Employer contributions 665 601
Contributions by scheme participants 179 i76
Estimated benefits paid (£76) (263)
Fair value of pian assets at end of period 14,899 13,915

Events after the reporting period

On 29 November 2022, the Office for National Statistics reclessified ail college

corporations to Centrat Government sector with immediate effect.

This will mean
thal colleges will now be subject Lo the tramework fov finandal management set
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out in Managing Public Money (MFM) and the Department for Education will introduce
new rules for colleges, some of which will take effect immediately.

Related Party Transactions

Due to the nature of the College’s operations and the composition of the Corporation
(being drawn from local public and private sector organisations) it is inevitable that
transactions will take place with organisations in which a Member of the Corporation
may have an interest. All transactions involving organisations in which @ Member of

the Corporation may have an interest are conducted at arm’s length and in
accordance with the College’s financial regulations and normal procurement
procedures. No transacitions were identified which should be disclosed.
Transactions with the Education and Skills Funding Agency are detailed in note 2.
No travel and subsistence expenses and other out of pocket expenses were incurred
by any member of the Corporation in attending Corporation meetings and charity
events in their official capacity.

No member of the Corporation has received any remuneration or waived payments

from the College or its subsidiaries during the year (2020-21: none).

Amounts disbursed as agent

2022 2021

£000 £000

Balance unspent at 31 July 33 9
Funding body grants - bursary support .. 114 99
147 108

Disbursed to students (116} (723
Administration costs - (8) (3)
25 - 33

Funding body grants are available solely for students. In the majority of instances,
the College only acts as a paying agent. In these circumstances, the grants and
related disbursements are therefore excluded from the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
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